
 
 

ADULTS SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH SCRUTINY BOARD 
Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
Agenda 
 
 

Date Thursday 7th September 2023 
 

Time 6.00 pm 
 

Venue Crompton Suite, Civic Centre, Oldham, West Street, Oldham, OL1 1NL 
 

Notes 
 

1. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST- If a Member requires advice on any 
item involving a possible declaration of interest which could affect his/her 
ability to speak and/or vote he/she is advised to contact Paul Entwistle or 
Constitutional Services at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 
 
2. CONTACT details for this agenda are available from Constitutional 
Services Tel. 0161 7705151 or email constitutional.services@oldham.gov.uk    
 
3. PUBLIC QUESTIONS - Any Member of the public wishing to ask a 
question at the above meeting can do so only if a written copy of the 
question is submitted to the contact officer by 12 noon on 4th September 
2023. 
 
4.  FILMING - The Council, members of the public and the press may record 
/ film / photograph or broadcast this meeting when the public and the press 
are not lawfully excluded.  Any member of the public who attends a meeting 
and objects to being filmed should advise the Constitutional Services Officer 
who will instruct that they are not included in the filming. 
 
Please note that anyone using recording equipment both audio and visual 
will not be permitted to leave the equipment in the room where a private 
meeting is held. 
 
Recording and reporting the Council’s meetings is subject to the law 
including the law of defamation, the Human Rights Act, the Data Protection 
Act and the law on public order offences. 
 
Please also note the Public attendance Protocol on the Council’s Website 
 
https://www.oldham.gov.uk/homepage/1449/attending_council_meetings 
 

 MEMBERSHIP OF THE ADULTS SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH SCRUTINY 
BOARD 

 Councillors Adams, Ball, Hamblett, J. Harrison, Hobin, S. Hussain, McLaren 
and Moores (Chair) 
 

 

Public Document Pack

mailto:constitutional.services@oldham.gov.uk
https://www.oldham.gov.uk/homepage/1449/attending_council_meetings


 
 

Item No  

1   Apologies  

2   Minutes (Pages 1 - 6) 

 The Minutes of the meeting of the Adults Social Care and Health Scrutiny Board 
Committee held on 13th July 2023 are attached for approval. 

3   Declarations of Interest  

 To Receive Declarations of Interest in any Contract or matter to be discussed at 
the meeting. 

4   Urgent Business  

 Urgent business, if any, introduced by the Chair. 

5   Public Question Time  

 To receive Questions from the Public, in accordance with the Council’s 
Constitution. 

6   Minutes of Previous Meeting (Pages 7 - 12) 

 The Minutes of the meeting held on 13 July 2023 are attached for approval. 

7   Northern Care Alliance - Care Quality Commission - Inspection Report (Pages 13 
- 16) 

 To receive and consider a Care Quality Commission updated Inspection report. 
An updated report bespoke to Oldham will be circulated at the meeting. 

8   Pennine Acute Services Transaction and Associated Disaggregation (Pages 17 - 
42) 

 To receive and discuss the attached report regarding Complex Services Pennine 
Acute Disaggregation. 

9   Drugs and Alcohol Strategy : Adult Integrated Substance Misuse Treatment and 
Recovery in Oldham (Pages 43 - 50) 

 To receive and discuss an update on progress to date on embedding 
recommendations of the Government’s 10-year drugs plan ‘From harm to hope’ 
and local work on policy implementation. 

 



 

ADULTS SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH SCRUTINY BOARD 
13/07/2023 at 6.00 pm 

 
 

Present: Councillor Moores (Chair)  
Councillors Adams, Hamblett, J. Harrison, S. Hussain and 
McLaren 
 

 Also in Attendance: 
 Rebecca Fletcher Interim Director of Public Health 
 Jayne Ratcliffe 

Mike Barker 
 
 
Jill Clark 
 
Claire Hooley 
Charlotte Walker 
 
Hayley Eccles 
Paul Rogers 
 

Director, Adult Social Care Services 
Strategic Director of 
Commissioning/Chief Operating 
Officer 
Divisional Managing Director of 
Medicare 
Head of Commissioning (ASC) 
Assistant Director, ASC Reform and 
Improvement 
Assistant Director, ASC Operations 
Constitutional Services 

 

 

1   ELECTION OF VICE CHAIR   

RESOLVED - That Councillor McLaren be appointed as Vice-
Chair of the Adults Social Care and Health Scrutiny Board for 
the 2023/24 Municipal Year. 
 

2   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Ball. 

3   URGENT BUSINESS   

There were no items of urgent business received. 

4   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

Councillor J Harrison declared a personal interest as she is 
Chair of the Health and Wellbeing Board and her daughter in 
law is manager of the Schools Swimming Service. 

5   PUBLIC QUESTION TIME   

There were no public questions for this meeting of the 
Committee to consider. 

6   MINUTES   

Members were informed that the NCA summary of the 
Inspection report with specific focus on Royal Oldham Hospital 
to include previous inspection ratings for comparison and the 
actions needed to improve as a consequence of the current 
Inspection findings had not been received as referred to in the 
resolution of Minute 7. 
 
Similarly the NCA Localities Board membership and its Terms of 
Reference had not been received as referred to in the resolution 
to Minute 7.  Page 1

Agenda Item 2



 

 
RESOLVED – That subject to the officers following up on the 
resolution to Minute 7, the Minutes of the Health Scrutiny 
Committee held on 7 March 2023 be noted. 
 

7   TERMS OF REFERENCE   

RESOLVED – that the Terms of Reference of the Adults, Social 
Care and Health Scrutiny Board be noted. 
 

8   OLDHAM HEALTH AND WELLBEING STRATEGY   

The Board received an update presentation from Rebecca 
Fletcher, Interim Director of Public Health, of the Health and 
Wellbeing Strategy. 
 
Members were informed that the report provides an introduction 
to the Strategy, and includes the Health and Wellbeing Strategy 
itself.  The Health and Wellbeing Strategy was approved by the 
Health and Wellbeing Board in March 2023 and contains five 
themes that are to be subject to ‘deep dives’ at Health and 
Wellbeing Board meetings in 2023/24.  
 
The Joint Local Health and Wellbeing Strategy, and the Health 
and Wellbeing Board aim to improve the health and wellbeing of 
people in Oldham and reduce inequalities for all ages. The 
responsibility for developing and delivering the Health and 
Wellbeing Strategy (and the Joint Strategy Needs Assessment) 
sits with the Health and Wellbeing Board and rests with all the 
members of the board.  Oldham Health and Wellbeing Board is 
chaired by Cllr Jenny Harrison, and has good representation 
from partners.   
 
The strategy outlines the principles that the board members 
agree the system needs to work to in order to make the changes 
needed. These are:  

 We are resident focused  

 We have a well-managed health and care system  

 We are champions of equality  

 We prioritise prevention  
 
There are then five priorities which the Board have agreed 
would make a significant impact on the health and wellbeing of 
the borough. These are:  
 

 Supporting our residents to gain the knowledge and skills 
to confidently make choices and participate in decisions 
about their own health  

 Giving children the best start in life 

 Improving mental wellbeing and mental health  

 Reducing smoking 

 Increasing physical activity  
 
On discussion the following points were raised 

 Feedback on mental health and wellbeing Page 2



 

 Effective approaches to tobacco and vapes non smoking  

 Cycle lane and cycle parking infrastructure and the 
positive effect on wellbeing 
 

Reference was made to principles and priorities as detailed 
above and the need to manage and promote those principles 
with a view to achieving better lifestyles and health of residents 
thus reliving pressure on the NHS. It was suggested that the 
voluntary sector could combine to help to achieve the objectives 
set out in the Strategy. 
 
Mike Barker, Strategic Director of Commissioning/Chief 
Operating Officer, emphasised the need for the various 
objectives and goals to be achieved via one programme rather 
that  hospitals, GP’s Mental health and other bodies running 
their own programme. 
 
Rebecca Fletcher thanked members for their input regarding 
strategy objectives. She also emphasized that any positive 
outcomes of the strategy objectives would be as a result of the 
combined contributions of Board members and the interaction 
with the various groups. 
 
RESOLVED – that  
 
(1) The involvement of Oldham Districts to take forward the 
development of a programme regarding the achievement of the 
objectives and goals of the Oldham Health and Wellbeing 
Strategy be raised with Councillor Dean, Cabinet Member for 
Communities and Culture;  
 
(2) the Board to receive updates on the progress of the 
programme regarding the objectives and goals for the Strategy 
at future meetings of the Board; and 
 
(2) the Health and Wellbeing Strategy be noted. 
 

9   EMERGENCY PAEDIATRICS   

Consideration was given to a report which gives an update on 
Urgent and Emergency Care for Oldham Paediatrics. This report 
was submitted to the Health Scrutiny Committee meeting on 7 
March 2023 but was deferred to the this meeting due to the 
lateness of submission to Members. 
 
Mike Barker, Strategic Director of Commissioning/Chief 
Operating Officer, made reference to the winter of 2022, referred 
to post Covid and 2023 winter pressures on Children’s Services 
and Paediatrics services with the added current pressure of the 
medical professions strikes. He informed the Board these 
pressures combined with the regular fluctuations in demand 
emphasized the challenges and objective to provide the best 
quality care. 
 

Page 3



 

Members were advised that this year has shown an increase in 
A and E attendances. It was also emphasized that attendances 
were difficult to predict due to random virus outbreaks. 
 
Members attention was drawn to the 4 hour target for childrens 
admissions and the previous target of childrens attendances of 
95 per cent at A and E alongside adults. This had now been 
reduced nationally by NCO (National Casemix Office) down to 
76 per cent by April 2024 with this committed target by NCO of 
September this year . The target should be complimented by the 
fact that queues for A and E had been nullified. 
 
The Board was informed that although the paediatric workforce 
was difficult to source the workforce establishment is at its 
highest but is hampered by industrial strike action. 
 
 
 
In response to a question regarding the improvement in A and E 
attendances and the Health and Wellbeing Strategy, the Board 
was informed that the balance of risk was being managed and 
the much improved performance progress was having the 
desired affect on A and E attendances. 
 
Mike Barker advised that the previous unplanned activity 
approach had been replaced by a planned activity approach 
which had resulted in better efficiency. There is a structure in 
place at hospitals to enable care homes to be aware and ready 
to admit patients being discharged from hospital. 
 
Jayne Ratcliffe, Director of Adult and Social Care informed the 
Board that the current positive timely discharge rate at Oldham 
has attracted the attention of other health authorities in the way 
that this has been achieved. 
 
RESOLVED that the report and current update on urgent and 
emergency care for Oldham Paediatrics be noted. 
 

10   CQC PREPARATION   

The Board received a presentation from jayne Ratcliffe, Director 
of Adult and Social Care, regarding a Care Quality Commission 
(CQC) inspection CQC Presentation.  
 
Members were informed of the following Scrutiny schedule prior 
to the CQC Assessment inspection in April 2024 –  
 

1. CQC preparation – July 13th 2023 
2. Safeguarding – September 6th 2023 
3. Care market – December 5th 2023 
4. Transition / Preparing for Adulthood – January 16th 2024  
5. Workforce  - March 7th 2024 

 
The following was emphasised to Members –  
 

Page 4

file://///Home/NtoR/Paul.Rogers/Documents/ASC%20CQC%20for%20overview%20and%20scrutiny%20June%202023.pptx


 

• In March this year, it was announced that Care Quality 
Commission (CQC) inspections are changing. Their aim 
is to streamline and simplify the assessment process and 
replace the four individual frameworks that are used 
currently to one single assessment framework. 

• Whilst streamlining the assessment process, the CQC 
have also been given the power to scrutinise and assess 
how well local authorities are delivering the legislation 
from the Care Act 2014. 

• These inspection changes are not supposed to take place 
until April next year but in that time, preparing for these 
changes are key.  

 
The Board was also informed of the following –  
 

1) Areas of Inspection  
2) How the areas will be rated  
3) The Peer Review Process 
4) The Peer Review Outcomes 
5) The Council’s approach to Inspection 
6) The Adult and Social Care Change Board which 

assesses Governance an Assurance  
7) The role of elected Members 
8) The Next Steps which will focus on –  

 A focus on priority improvement areas within the 
Adult Social Care improvement plan (workforce 
and the Target Operating Model as 2 of the 
biggest priorities) 

 Leadership and project sub groups established 
supported by detailed plans 

 Reporting, measurement and risk log developed 

 Month assurance update to ASC Change Board 
 
It was emphasised that it is essential to properly prepared for 
the inspection.  
 
In response to an issue raised regarding overlaps with the 
Health and Wellbeing Strategy, members were advised 
integration with the Strategy is key eradicating duplication. 
 
It was suggested that Member drop in sessions would be a 
useful tool and feed as to progress being made. 
 
With regard to way forward regarding achievements and 
progression and Get to Good’ factor, Jayne Ratcliffe advised 
that the Areas of Inspection - Working with People, Providing 
Support, Ensuring Safety and Leadership (as set out in the 
presentation) underlines these elements. She also highlighted 
working with the community via the Residents Council Panel 
which will help to show the connection with the community. 
 
RESOLVED the CQC presentation be received and noted. 
 
 
 Page 5



 

  
 

11   ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH SCRUTINY BOARD 
WORK PROGRAMME 2023/24  

 

The Board received a draft Adult Social Care and Health work 
programme for consideration. The Chair advised that he would 
be consulting with the Vice Chair to refine the programme and 
requested Members to inform him of any further items for 
inclusion.  
 
RESOLVED that a revised draft work programme be submitted 
to the next Board meeting for consideration and approval. 

12   KEY DECISION NOTICE   

Th Board considered the latest Key Decisions document which 
set out the Authority’s Key Decisions scheduled to be taken from 
23 June 2023. 
 
RSOLVED that the Key Decisions document be noted. 
 

The meeting started at 6.00 pm and ended at 8.00 pm 
 

Page 6



 

ADULTS SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH SCRUTINY BOARD 
13/07/2023 at 6.00 pm 

 
 

Present: Councillor Moores (Chair)  
Councillors Adams, Hamblett, J. Harrison, S. Hussain and 
McLaren 
 

 Also in Attendance: 
 Rebecca Fletcher Interim Director of Public Health 
 Jayne Ratcliffe 

Mike Barker 
 
 
Jill Clark 
 
Claire Hooley 
Charlotte Walker 
 
Hayley Eccles 
Paul Rogers 
 

Director, Adult Social Care Services 
Strategic Director of 
Commissioning/Chief Operating 
Officer 
Divisional Managing Director of 
Medicare 
Head of Commissioning (ASC) 
Assistant Director, ASC Reform and 
Improvement 
Assistant Director, ASC Operations 
Constitutional Services 

 

 

1   ELECTION OF VICE CHAIR   

RESOLVED - That Councillor McLaren be appointed as Vice-
Chair of the Adults Social Care and Health Scrutiny Board for 
the 2023/24 Municipal Year. 
 

2   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Ball. 

3   URGENT BUSINESS   

There were no items of urgent business received. 

4   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

Councillor J Harrison declared a personal interest as she is 
Chair of the Health and Wellbeing Board and her daughter in 
law is manager of the Schools Swimming Service. 

5   PUBLIC QUESTION TIME   

There were no public questions for this meeting of the 
Committee to consider. 

6   MINUTES   

Members were informed that the NCA summary of the 
Inspection report with specific focus on Royal Oldham Hospital 
to include previous inspection ratings for comparison and the 
actions needed to improve as a consequence of the current 
Inspection findings had not been received as referred to in the 
resolution of Minute 7. 
 
Similarly the NCA Localities Board membership and its Terms of 
Reference had not been received as referred to in the resolution 
to Minute 7.  Page 7

Agenda Item 6



 

 
RESOLVED – That subject to the officers following up on the 
resolution to Minute 7, the Minutes of the Health Scrutiny 
Committee held on 7 March 2023 be noted. 
 

7   TERMS OF REFERENCE   

RESOLVED – that the Terms of Reference of the Adults, Social 
Care and Health Scrutiny Board be noted. 
 

8   OLDHAM HEALTH AND WELLBEING STRATEGY   

The Board received an update presentation from Rebecca 
Fletcher, Interim Director of Public Health, of the Health and 
Wellbeing Strategy. 
 
Members were informed that the report provides an introduction 
to the Strategy, and includes the Health and Wellbeing Strategy 
itself.  The Health and Wellbeing Strategy was approved by the 
Health and Wellbeing Board in March 2023 and contains five 
themes that are to be subject to ‘deep dives’ at Health and 
Wellbeing Board meetings in 2023/24.  
 
The Joint Local Health and Wellbeing Strategy, and the Health 
and Wellbeing Board aim to improve the health and wellbeing of 
people in Oldham and reduce inequalities for all ages. The 
responsibility for developing and delivering the Health and 
Wellbeing Strategy (and the Joint Strategy Needs Assessment) 
sits with the Health and Wellbeing Board and rests with all the 
members of the board.  Oldham Health and Wellbeing Board is 
chaired by Cllr Jenny Harrison, and has good representation 
from partners.   
 
The strategy outlines the principles that the board members 
agree the system needs to work to in order to make the changes 
needed. These are:  

 We are resident focused  

 We have a well-managed health and care system  

 We are champions of equality  

 We prioritise prevention  
 
There are then five priorities which the Board have agreed 
would make a significant impact on the health and wellbeing of 
the borough. These are:  
 

 Supporting our residents to gain the knowledge and skills 
to confidently make choices and participate in decisions 
about their own health  

 Giving children the best start in life 

 Improving mental wellbeing and mental health  

 Reducing smoking 

 Increasing physical activity  
 
On discussion the following points were raised 

 Feedback on mental health and wellbeing Page 8



 

 Effective approaches to tobacco and vapes non smoking  

 Cycle lane and cycle parking infrastructure and the 
positive effect on wellbeing 
 

Reference was made to principles and priorities as detailed 
above and the need to manage and promote those principles 
with a view to achieving better lifestyles and health of residents 
thus reliving pressure on the NHS. It was suggested that the 
voluntary sector could combine to help to achieve the objectives 
set out in the Strategy. 
 
Mike Barker, Strategic Director of Commissioning/Chief 
Operating Officer, emphasised the need for the various 
objectives and goals to be achieved via one programme rather 
that  hospitals, GP’s Mental health and other bodies running 
their own programme. 
 
Rebecca Fletcher thanked members for their input regarding 
strategy objectives. She also emphasized that any positive 
outcomes of the strategy objectives would be as a result of the 
combined contributions of Board members and the interaction 
with the various groups. 
 
RESOLVED – that  
 
(1) The involvement of Oldham Districts to take forward the 
development of a programme regarding the achievement of the 
objectives and goals of the Oldham Health and Wellbeing 
Strategy be raised with Councillor Dean, Cabinet Member for 
Communities and Culture;  
 
(2) the Board to receive updates on the progress of the 
programme regarding the objectives and goals for the Strategy 
at future meetings of the Board; and 
 
(2) the Health and Wellbeing Strategy be noted. 
 

9   EMERGENCY PAEDIATRICS   

Consideration was given to a report which gives an update on 
Urgent and Emergency Care for Oldham Paediatrics. This report 
was submitted to the Health Scrutiny Committee meeting on 7 
March 2023 but was deferred to the this meeting due to the 
lateness of submission to Members. 
 
Mike Barker, Strategic Director of Commissioning/Chief 
Operating Officer, made reference to the winter of 2022, referred 
to post Covid and 2023 winter pressures on Children’s Services 
and Paediatrics services with the added current pressure of the 
medical professions strikes. He informed the Board these 
pressures combined with the regular fluctuations in demand 
emphasized the challenges and objective to provide the best 
quality care. 
 

Page 9



 

Members were advised that this year has shown an increase in 
A and E attendances. It was also emphasized that attendances 
were difficult to predict due to random virus outbreaks. 
 
Members attention was drawn to the 4 hour target for childrens 
admissions and the previous target of childrens attendances of 
95 per cent at A and E alongside adults. This had now been 
reduced nationally by NCO (National Casemix Office) down to 
76 per cent by April 2024 with this committed target by NCO of 
September this year . The target should be complimented by the 
fact that queues for A and E had been nullified. 
 
The Board was informed that although the paediatric workforce 
was difficult to source the workforce establishment is at its 
highest but is hampered by industrial strike action. 
 
 
 
In response to a question regarding the improvement in A and E 
attendances and the Health and Wellbeing Strategy, the Board 
was informed that the balance of risk was being managed and 
the much improved performance progress was having the 
desired affect on A and E attendances. 
 
Mike Barker advised that the previous unplanned activity 
approach had been replaced by a planned activity approach 
which had resulted in better efficiency. There is a structure in 
place at hospitals to enable care homes to be aware and ready 
to admit patients being discharged from hospital. 
 
Jayne Ratcliffe, Director of Adult and Social Care informed the 
Board that the current positive timely discharge rate at Oldham 
has attracted the attention of other health authorities in the way 
that this has been achieved. 
 
RESOLVED that the report and current update on urgent and 
emergency care for Oldham Paediatrics be noted. 
 

10   CQC PREPARATION   

The Board received a presentation from jayne Ratcliffe, Director 
of Adult and Social Care, regarding a Care Quality Commission 
(CQC) inspection CQC Presentation.  
 
Members were informed of the following Scrutiny schedule prior 
to the CQC Assessment inspection in April 2024 –  
 

1. CQC preparation – July 13th 2023 
2. Safeguarding – September 6th 2023 
3. Care market – December 5th 2023 
4. Transition / Preparing for Adulthood – January 16th 2024  
5. Workforce  - March 7th 2024 

 
The following was emphasised to Members –  
 

Page 10

file://///Home/NtoR/Paul.Rogers/Documents/ASC%20CQC%20for%20overview%20and%20scrutiny%20June%202023.pptx


 

• In March this year, it was announced that Care Quality 
Commission (CQC) inspections are changing. Their aim 
is to streamline and simplify the assessment process and 
replace the four individual frameworks that are used 
currently to one single assessment framework. 

• Whilst streamlining the assessment process, the CQC 
have also been given the power to scrutinise and assess 
how well local authorities are delivering the legislation 
from the Care Act 2014. 

• These inspection changes are not supposed to take place 
until April next year but in that time, preparing for these 
changes are key.  

 
The Board was also informed of the following –  
 

1) Areas of Inspection  
2) How the areas will be rated  
3) The Peer Review Process 
4) The Peer Review Outcomes 
5) The Council’s approach to Inspection 
6) The Adult and Social Care Change Board which 

assesses Governance an Assurance  
7) The role of elected Members 
8) The Next Steps which will focus on –  

 A focus on priority improvement areas within the 
Adult Social Care improvement plan (workforce 
and the Target Operating Model as 2 of the 
biggest priorities) 

 Leadership and project sub groups established 
supported by detailed plans 

 Reporting, measurement and risk log developed 

 Month assurance update to ASC Change Board 
 
It was emphasised that it is essential to properly prepared for 
the inspection.  
 
In response to an issue raised regarding overlaps with the 
Health and Wellbeing Strategy, members were advised 
integration with the Strategy is key eradicating duplication. 
 
It was suggested that Member drop in sessions would be a 
useful tool and feed as to progress being made. 
 
With regard to way forward regarding achievements and 
progression and Get to Good’ factor, Jayne Ratcliffe advised 
that the Areas of Inspection - Working with People, Providing 
Support, Ensuring Safety and Leadership (as set out in the 
presentation) underlines these elements. She also highlighted 
working with the community via the Residents Council Panel 
which will help to show the connection with the community. 
 
RESOLVED the CQC presentation be received and noted. 
 
 
 Page 11



 

  
 

11   ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH SCRUTINY BOARD 
WORK PROGRAMME 2023/24  

 

The Board received a draft Adult Social Care and Health work 
programme for consideration. The Chair advised that he would 
be consulting with the Vice Chair to refine the programme and 
requested Members to inform him of any further items for 
inclusion.  
 
RESOLVED that a revised draft work programme be submitted 
to the next Board meeting for consideration and approval. 

12   KEY DECISION NOTICE   

Th Board considered the latest Key Decisions document which 
set out the Authority’s Key Decisions scheduled to be taken from 
23 June 2023. 
 
RSOLVED that the Key Decisions document be noted. 
 

The meeting started at 6.00 pm and ended at 8.00 pm 
 

Page 12



 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

 
 
MEETING: Health and 
Scrutiny Committee 

 
 

 
DATE: 

 
 

 
SUBJECT: CQC 
inspection outcome 

 
 

 
REPORT FROM: 
Heather Caudle, Chief 
Nurse Northern Care 
Alliance 

 
 

 
CONTACT OFFICER: 

 
Jacqui Burrow, Deputy Chief Nurse 

  

 
1.0 BACKGROUND 

Unannounced Inspection commenced on 8th August 2022 and concluded following the well 
led element of the inspection on 26th September 2022.  Prior to the inspection in July 2022, 
we had carried out a detailed self assessment against the key lines of enquiry and had 
rated ourselves as requires improvement.   

 
1.1 The CQC Inspection was carried out using a risk based approach based on data and 

intelligence gathered. Areas of concerns had flagged with CQC based on information 
from external reporting (STEIS, waiting times, quality and performance indicators), 
enquiries they had received from the public and staff, and from themes they had 
become aware of through Incidents, complaints and RCAs. In particular a focus of 
the inspection in Fairfield General was the treatment and care of people with 
disordered eating, following a PFD order issued to the organisation in November 
2021. 
 

1.2 Areas inspected by CQC: 
 

• Salford Care Organisation – Medicine, Surgery, Urgent and Emergency Care 
• Oldham Care Organisation – Medicine, Surgery, Urgent and Emergency Care and 

Maternity  
• Bury Care Organisation - Medicine, Urgent and Emergency Care  
• Rochdale – Maternity  

 
           1.3     Rochdale Care Organisation was not inspected, however maternity services based at          
Rochdale (managed by Oldham) were inspected as part of the overall maternity inspection. 

 
 

 

Page 13

Agenda Item 7



 
 
 

 
 

1.1 Areas of good practice were also identified one of which for Royal Oldham Hospital  
 

 
 
Royal Oldham Urgent and Emergency Care 

The department had developed a training session to raise awareness around 
support for victims of domestic abuse. The program was developed in partnership 
with and delivered by a survivor of domestic abuse. The training program linked in 
with local services for survivors, familiarised staff with relevant referrals, and 
developed discreet methods of providing victims with helpline contact details. Staff 
said this training provided them with confidence in supporting victims and using 
professional curiosity to raise or challenge signs of domestic abuse. 

 

1.2 2.0 ISSUES  
 

When NCA became a legal entity -  Salford’s current rating of outstanding was adopted for 
the NCA, and any previous Pennine Acute Trust overall Ratings were no longer applicable. 
Ratings were given for each core service inspected but an overall rating for Bury, Rochdale 
and Oldham were not given. 

 
2.1  The overall rating for the Northern Care Alliance following the inspection is Requires 

Improvement.   
 

2.2 The final report was published on the 22nd December 2022  and this was 
accompanied by a statement made by the Chief Executive Officer that 
acknowledged the report findings and that some improvements were already 
underway. There were 120 recommendations made within the report, categorised as 
‘Must Do’ or ‘Should Do’ actions which now need to be addressed to ensure that the 
NCA is not placed at risk of breaching a Health and Social Care Act Regulation or 
one of the CQC Fundamental Standards. We must also ensure that the care and 
safety of patients remains one of our key priorities alongside the wellbeing of staff. 

 
2.3 Overall Rating for the Northern Care Alliance  

 

 
 

 
 
 

Page 14



 
 
 

 
 
2.4  Several main themes emerged from the inspection which alongside the must and 

should do actions will be included as part of the overall improvement plan.  These 
include - Visibility of senior leaders; although this did not emerge as a theme for 
Fairfield general,  Culture, Information Management, Governance, Staffing, 
Mandatory Training, Patient Flow and Waiting Times, Policy Management, 
Medicines Management, Shared Learning 

 
3.0 CONCLUSION  
 

3.1 Under Regulation 17(3) of the Health and Social Care Act 2008 (Regulated Activities) 
Regulations 2014, CQC have asked for a written report of the action we are going to take to 
meet the associated regulations and any other legislation. This is currently in development 
and due for submission with the CQC by 31st January 2023. 

 
3.2 To mitigate any gaps in controls, optimise opportunities to harmonise clinical practices across 

the Trust, identify areas of good practice and to link with improvement work that is already 
underway, actions have been mapped across all sites regardless of the initial core service that 
the CQC originally identified recorded the action against so that we can ensure that we 
address issues in their entirety. Learning from all areas inspected will be applied across the 
entire organisation; the result for Oldham being that some of the developments will enhance 
work already in train rather than only addressing areas in deficit.  

 
3.3 As part of the improvement plan each regulation has been an assigned to an Executive lead 

for monitoring and support. 
 

3.4 A Quality Standards & Improvement Group has been established to monitor and oversee the 
progress of the overarching action plan – chaired by the Deputy Chief Nurse.  The Group 
Assurance and Compliance Team will provide oversight to the action plan on behalf of the 
NCA and provide reports on progress to EQPC, Audit Committee and Group Board and 
partners as required.   

 
4.0 SAFEGUARDING IMPLICATIONS  
 
 To outline any safeguarding implications in relation to the report. 
 
 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



 

1 

Main paper  

 

Complex Services Pennine Acute Disaggregation 
 
 
1 Background 
 
In 2021, Manchester Foundation Trust (MFT) acquired the North Manchester General Hospital (NMGH) 
site, and Salford Royal Foundation Trust (SRFT) acquired the remaining sites of PAHT, creating the 
Northern Care Alliance FT (NCA). Since then, due to the way in which digital systems and clinical rotas 
operate, there are some services that operate across the two providers that have not yet been 
‘disaggregated’. This means that the services still need to be split between the two organisations using an 
agreed set of principles: including splitting of the workforce, budget and waiting lists. In September 2022 
the first phase of cmplex services were disaggregated (Fetal Medicine, Clinical Haematology and Sleep 
Services), these were considered by Scrutiny Committees in July 2022. A second phase (Cardiology, 
Gastronterology, Rheumatology and Urology (6 low volume pathways)) will be disaggregated in September 
2023. Scrutiny Committees considered these proposals in January 2023.. The final phase of dissagregation 
is due to take place between January 2024 and March 2024 and includes Dexa (bone density) scanning, 
Ear, Nose & Throat (ENT), Trauma & Orthopaedics (T&O) and Urology. This paper concerns this final 
phase, and in particular scrutiny’s approval of the substantial variation assessments that have been 
developed to assess the scale of impact of these changes. 
 
 
2 Recommendations  
 
Oldham Scrutiny Committee is asked to receive the report updating on the progress to disaggregate 
services from PAHT between the NCA and MFT, and to support the substantial variation assessments for 
the four services which recommend that these changes do not constitute a substantial variation. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Contact Details:- 
 
Moneeza Iqbal, Director of Strategy, Northern Care Alliance NHS Foundation Trust 
Sophie Hargreaves, Director of Strategy, Manchester University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 17

Agenda Item 8



 

 2 

3 Introduction and Purpose 

This document provides an update regarding the dissolution of the former Pennine Acute Hospitals 

Trust (PAHT) and re-provision of services by both Manchester University NHS Foundation Trust 

(MFT) and the remainder of the PAHT sites into the Northern Care Alliance (NCA). In particular, 

planned service changes in the context of previously agreed decisions taken in Greater 

Manchester to disaggregate services from the legacy PAHT and integrate North Manchester 

General Hospital (NMGH) into MFT and the remainder of the PAHT sites into the NCA. 

The paper provides the following: 

 A reminder about the background to the acquisition of the Pennine Acute Hospitals Trust 

 An overview of the disaggregation approach and context of complex services 

 An overview of the engagement undertaken with patients to gain feedback and insights to 

inform these plans 

 The likely impact on Oldham patients 

 A summary of the substantial variation assessment for each specialty 

 

3.1 Strategic Context to the Pennine Acute Transaction 

In January 2016, healthcare partner organisations in Manchester commissioned an independent 

review of the disposition and organisation of hospital services. This review concluded that the most 

effective route to achieve clinical, safety and efficiency benefits was to create a single hospital 

trust for Manchester. The findings of the report were endorsed by all the participating 

organisations.  

At the same time, PAHT was facing significant challenges. Following many years of financial 

difficulties, a CQC inspection identified material problems with standards of care, and in August 

2016 the Trust was rated as Inadequate. The NHS Improvement regional team undertook an 

option appraisal in respect of the long-term future of PAHT, and this concluded that the preferred 

option was for NMGH to be acquired by MFT, and for the other PAHT sites to be acquired by 

SRFT. MFT formally acquired the NMGH site and services through a commercial transaction on 1 

April 2021, and SRFT acquired the remaining elements of PAHT through a statutory transaction on 

1 October 2021 and became the Northern Care Alliance (NCA). 

MFT and the NCA developed business cases to support the acquisitions, and these recognised 

the potential to deliver benefits through integrating former PAHT clinical teams into larger single 

services operating across the Manchester and NCA footprints respectively. However, both 

business cases also identified the significant legacy challenges in the former PAHT services, 

particularly in relation to financial sustainability and the need to invest in infrastructure (including 

Estate and Digital).  

In its 15 years of independent operation there was some significant integration of services across 

the PAHT sites. The process of disaggregating these is therefore complex. MFT and the NCA 

have strong post-transaction joint working arrangements with significant progress-to-date and are 

continuing to work through these structures to agree the most appropriate timing and approach for 

disaggregation of these complex service arrangements. 

NCA and MFT are progressing their plans for investment in the former PAHT sites and services, 

including new and improved buildings, equipment and information systems. On digital investment, 

MFT successfully rolled out the new electronic patient record (EPR) across the Trust (including 

NMGH) in September 2022. 

Page 18



 

 3 

 

3.2 Overview of disaggregation 

At the time of the transaction, it was agreed to minimise any changes in clinical/patient pathways 

for ‘Day 1’ as a means of ensuring a safe and smooth transition. To support this agreement, a 

series of Service Level Agreement (SLA) arrangements were put in place to oversee the delivery 

of patient pathways across the North Manchester, Bury, Oldham and Rochdale hospital sites. 

However, both MFT and the NCA agreed that these SLA arrangements should be gradually wound 

down and accompanied by the sustainable integration of NMGH services into MFT and 

Bury/Oldham/Rochdale services into the NCA. This process is often referred to as the 

‘disaggregation’ of legacy PAHT services and has been ongoing since the transactions were 

completed in 2021. 

The process of disaggregation has required significant collaboration and co-operation between  

NCA and MFT. It has involved splitting services between the two organisations using an agreed 

set of principles. This includes separating of the workforce, budget and waiting lists and is a 

complex and wide-ranging piece of work that has implications across a variety of areas including 

IM&T, finance and governance. The work to disaggregate services must be handled carefully and 

with due regard to minimising the impact on patients, and staff. The initial work to disaggregate 

services was overseen by the legacy PAHT Board and was also evaluated by NHSEI as part of 

the Transaction Review process.  

For each specialty or pathway that is being disaggregated, a working group of clinical experts in 

that specialty is convened to review the current service and develop the best clinical model, whilst 

a range of information including patient feedback, clinical outcomes and equality analysis is 

analysed to understand which options will deliver the best model for patients. 

3.3 Progress of disaggregation: phases one and two 

At the time of the transactions, approximately ninety SLA arrangements were in place across a 

range of clinical and corporate areas. Now more than half of these arrangements have been stood 

down. The SLAs that have been concluded to date represent the most straightforward 

disaggregation processes that have impacted low numbers of staff and have not required any 

changes to patient pathways.   

In the main, service provision remains the same however there will be some elements of service 

change to ensure alignment of services to each respective organisation. Furthermore, in the 

majority of cases services will be provided within both the NCA and MFT offering patients the 

choice of which service to access. 

Since summer 2022 NCA and MFT have been developing plans for the disagregation of ‘complex 

services’. These are services that will potentially require a change in location or change in patient 

flows. As such, there has been strong engagement and early discussions with all relevant 

commissioners / localities1 through a series of large-scale meetings and close working with all 

partners to ensure a collaborative approach to developing service change proposals. A group 

established of lead commissioners from each Locality, chaired by the nominated GM ICB lead 

Mike Barker (Place Based Lead for Oldham) has overseen MFT and NCA’s development of this 

work. 

In September 2022, the first phase of complex services was dissagregated; Clinical Haematology, 

Sleep services and Foetal Medicine pathways. This was prior to ‘go live’ of MFT’s new electronic 

patient record system EPIC.  

The second phase of changes, will come into effect in September 2023 and includes some 

Cardiology, Gastroenterology, Rheumatology and Urology pathways. These changes were 

considered by the HMR locality Board  in February  2023 and followed the agreed GM Service 

                                            
1 Manchester, Bury, HMR, Oldham, Trafford, Salford and Specialist Commissioning  Page 19



 

 4 

Change Framework – see appendix 1. MFT and NCA are working closely to develop safe 

transition plans for this next phase of changes, as well as working closely with Localities to ensure 

that GPs and referrers are aware of the new options and changes to pathways. 

 

3.4 Which services are affected in phase three? 

The final phase three complex service changes are planned to be implemented between January 

and March 2024 and affect the following specialties; 

 DEXA or bone density scanning 

 Ear, nose and throat (ENT) pathways 

 Inpatient Urology 

 Trauma & Orthopaedic surgical pathways 

 

The integration of these services into MFT and NCA single services respectively, maximises the 

opportunity to realise the benefits envisaged in the organisational restructuring of PAHT as 

determined by NHS Improvement. Moreover, it delivers safe and clinically sustainable services for 

the populations of Bury, Oldham, Rochdale and North Manchester. 

For each service or clinical pathway, as with earlier phases, the following steps have been taken: 

1. Clinical review 

2. Patient engagement 

3. Equality Impact Assessment 

4. Travel analysis 

5. Quality Impact Assessment 

 

A joint working group of clinicians is established to oversee development and agreement of clinical 

models. This group works jointly to understand the options for safely integrating or re-providing 

services within MFT and NCA and develop proposals which support the following; 

 Quality and safety 

 Health inequalities 

 Efficiency - reduction in waiting times as well as being delivered within existing costs 

 Patient experience  

 Deliverability e.g., we have the right workforce 

 Travel and access for the population 

 Strategic fit e.g., alignment with any wider clinical decisions such as GM Cardiac pathways  

 

From this, detailed service change proposals have been developed. Patient engagement is then 

undertaken alongside equality impact analysis,travel analysis and quality impact assessment.  

A detailed travel analysis has been undertaken to understand the impact of the proposed changes 
on the populations affected. This considers the impact for residents living in the affected 
catchment area on journey times by car and public transport (including bus, tram and a 
combination of the two). The analysis also includes an assessment of the costs of travel. This has 
been used to inform the completion of the ‘Substantial Variation Assessments’ 
 
A range of patient engagement approaches have been used including review of existing feedback 
on the services affected, as well as bespoke surveys and engagement events. These have 
included questionnaires or surveys in an outpatient setting, deliberative events and engagement 
with existing patient forums such as Healthwatch and locality patients groups where they are in 
place. Where appropriate deliberative events have been undertaken to understand more about 
how any potential changes to pathways should be made, and to consider mitigating actions MFT 
or NCA should make. This work has also been assured by the Greater Manchester Integrated 
Care System via their engagement team and considered by the GM Engagement and Inclusion 
Assurance Group (EIAG). 
 Page 20



 

 5 

Table 1 Summary of engagement activities and themes 

 
Engagement 
activity 

Service 
changes 

Summary How has this informed the 
proposals 

Outpatient 
setting surveys 
 

ENT 
Urology 
T&O  

~300 surveys completed in 8 
different outpatient clinics. 
These have shown that most 
patients arrive for their care by 
car. These have also shown 
patient views on the impact of 
travelling to other sites. 

For urology, patients 
expressed a preference for 
travelling to MRI over 
Wythenshawe. This has 
informed the selection of 
MRI as the preferred option. 

Deliberative 
events 

T&O Two deliberative events held 
with a total of 13 attendees. 
Over 400 former patients 
invited to attend.  
 
These events demonstrated a 
preference for activity to be 
delivered at NMGH where 
possible.  
 
Patients who live near NMGH 
gave examples of travelling to 
Fairfield General and 
Rochdale Infirmary multiple 
times during their pathway. 

T&O – the proposed model 
is to provide as much of the 
pathway at the local 
hospital as possible with 
only limited elements 
(elective surgery) to be 
provided at a dedicated 
elective hub. 

Healthwatch 
feedback 

DEXA 
ENT 
Urology 
T&O 

Manchester, Trafford, Salford, 
Bury, Rochdale and Oldham 
Healthwatch met. Healthwatch 
groups recognised the case 
for change and welcomed the 
proposals and welcomed the 
planned patient engagement. 
 
Feedback from Rochdale 
Healthwatch suggested 
improvements to letters sent 
to patients in advance of 
Phase 1 changes. 

Letters to be sent to 
patients for Phase 2 will be 
updated in light of feedback 
from Rochdale 
Healthwatch. 

Manchester 
Patient & 
Public 
Advisory 
Group 

DEXA 
ENT 
Urology 
T&O 

The group understood the 
challenge of delivering 
services across IT systems 
and recognised the case for 
disaggregation to avoid this. 
 
The group felt that support 
should be offered for patients 
with travel and travel costs.  
 
The group identified concerns 
about patients travelling by 
public transport who need to 
arrive for surgery very early in 
the morning. 

Options to support patients 
with travel and travel costs 
will be reiterated with GPs 
and Booking Teams in 
advance of the changes so 
these can be promoted to 
patients.  
 
MFT have confirmed that 
where appropriate later start 
times can be 
accommodated for patients 
travelling by public 
transport. 

 
 
 

Page 21



 

 6 

The feedback obtained through these routes will be used to inform how the planned changes will 
be implemented. 
 
The table below summarises the current and future plans for each area. An accompanying slide 

pack is also provided to explain the changes in more detail. The changes impact the NMGH 

catchment area. This includes residents living in wards in Salford, Bury, Rochdale, Oldham and 

Manchester (see appendix 2 for NMGH catchment map). 

In line with the Service Change Framework agreed by the Greater Manchester Integrated Care 

Board (GM ICB), for each area an assessment of whether the new pathways constitute 

‘substantial variation’. See appendix 1 for the Service Change Framework and appendix 3 for each 

‘Subtantial Variation Assessment’. 

Table 2 Summary of phase three services and future plans. 

 
Specialty  
 

Current and future services 
 
Substantial Variation 
Assessment 

 
DEXA: This is a test 
that measures bone 
density (strength). 
Results provide helpful 
details about a 
patient's risk for 
osteoporosis (bone 
loss) and fractures 
(bone breaks) 
 

Current services 
• Patients who receive care at NMGH 

and need a DEXA scan as part of their 
diagnosis must currently travel to Royal 
Oldham Hospital for their scan. Note 
this affects consultant referred DEXA 
scanning only. 

Future services 
the above refernced NCA service at 
Oldham remains, but in addition; 
• To make a change to current patient 

pathway so North Manchester 
residents access bone density DEXA 
scans at Manchester Royal Infirmary 
(Manchester University NHS 
Foundation Trust), rather than Royal 
Oldham Hospital (Northern Care 
Alliance NHS Foundation Trust).  

 

It is recommended that this 
change does not 
constitute substantial 
variation because it 
affects a limited number of 
patients and travel and 
access is similar or better 
for most of the population. 
 
 
 

 
ENT: These services 
deal with conditions 
affecting the ears, 
nose or throat. These 
can include hearing, 
dizziness or balance 
problems, conditions 
affecting the voice, 
breathing or 
swallowing, ear/sinus 
infections and 
tonsillitis, injuries to 
the nose, or cancers of 
the mouth or throat 
 

Current services 
North Manchester catchment currently 
receive ENT services from NCA clinicians 
based at: 
• Fairfield General Hospital (FGH) for 

inpatient and day case care for adults 
• Royal Oldham Hospital (ROH) for 

inpatient and day case care for children  
• Outpatient clinics are provided by NCA 

clinicians at NMGH 
Future services 
• Above NCA services remain, but in 

addition; 
• MFT to take on delivery of ENT 

services for the NMGH catchment 
population 

• For adults, provide 23-hour inpatient, 
day case and outpatient services at 
NMGH 

• For children, provide day case and 
outpatient services at NMGH, with 
overnight stay services at Royal 

It is recommended that this 
change does not 
constitute substantial 
variation because it 
increases choice for 
patients by creating a new 
service at NMGH. Patients 
will now be able to choose 
to access existing services 
at Fairfield General 
Hospital and Royal Oldham 
as well as NMGH. For the 
NMGH catchment this 
represents services closer 
to home. 

Page 22



 

 7 

Manchester Children’s Hospital 
 

 
Trauma and 
orthopaedics: These 
services are 
concerned with the 
diagnosis and 
treatment of conditions 
of the musculoskeletal 
system including 
bones and joints and 
structures that enable 
movement such as 
ligaments, tendons, 
muscles and nerves. 
 
 

Current services 
National guidance and best practice 
recommends that trauma (emergency) and 
planned T&O surgery is delivered in 
separate surgical hubs. This has been 
shown to reduce waiting times and improve 
outcomes.  
 
The PAHT service model was to run two 
services as follows: 
• Royal Oldham Hospital (trauma) and 

Rochdale Infirmary (planned surgery) 
provide care for Oldham and Rochdale 
residents 

• NMGH (trauma) and Fairfield General 
Hospital (planned surgery) providing 
care for the NMGH catchment and Bury 
populations 

 
Future services 
NMGH and the patient flows for this 
catchment will come under MFT. The MFT 
elective hub is at Trafford General 
Hospital. Therefore North Manchester 
residents needing planned T&O surgery 
will attend this hub. 
 
All outpatients, diagnostics and follow up 
care will be provided at NMGH, residents 
would only need to travel to the hub for 
their surgery.  
 
FGH catchment residents will now access 
trauma care at the hub at Royal Oldham 
for inpatient trauma and at Rochdale 
Infirmary for ambulatory care. This means 
patients who attend FGH A&E with a T&O 
emergency will no longer be transferred to 
NMGH and instead be transferred to 
Oldham. 
 

 
Elective orthopaedic care 
affecting the NMGH 
catchment population. It is 
recommended that this 
change does not 
constitute substantial 
variation because patients 
will be able to choose 
whether to access their 
care at either the elective 
hub at Fairfield General 
Hospital as they do now or 
at the MFT elective hub at 
Trafford General Hospital. 
Parts of the catchment are 
closer to Fairfield General 
Hospital and others are 
closer to Trafford General 
Hospital.  
 
Trauma care affecting the 
Fairfield General Hospital 
catchment population – 
travel analysis shows that 
Royal Oldham is closer for 
the Rochdale population 
but further for some part of 
the Bury population. 
 

 
Urology: part of health 
care that deals with 
diseases of the male 
and female 
kidneys, bladder, and 
prostate. 
 

Current services 
NMGH is the inpatient Urology site for the 
whole of PAHT. Outpatients and other 
aspects of the service are provided across 
the PAHT sites. MFT and the NCA propose 
that urology services fully separate in 
Jan 2024. 
 
Future services 
The NCA have previously proposed and 
agreed the following 
model to commissioners: 
• Bury residents will receive inpatient 

care at Salford Royal Hospital 
• Rochdale and Oldham residents will 

receive inpatient care at ROH 

It is recommended that this 
change does not 
constitute substantial 
variation because it 
affects a limited number of 
patients and 95% of 
current activity will remain 
as it is now at NMGH. Of 
the patients affected, a 
proportion are elective 
patients who can choose to 
have their care at either 
Royal Oldham Hospital or 
Manchester Royal 
Infirmary.  
 Page 23



 

 8 

 
For the North Manchester catchment 
• NMGH will provide local care including 

outpatients, 
investigations, day case and short stay 
low complexity surgery (95% of current 
patient care) 

• Robust on call arrangements will 
ensure safe care for emergency 
patients  

A small number of patients having complex 
planned surgery (~150) and patients 
needing an emergency admission (~550) 
will have this care at the specialist hub 
at MRI. 
 

 
 

 

4.  What does this mean for the Oldham population? 

For the Oldham population, the majority of patients access their care at The Royal Oldham 

Hospital, part of the NCA. For some day case surgery they are seen at Rochdale Infirmary, and for 

some surgery and other investigations, such as cardiological treatments, they are seen at Fairfield 

General Hospital, also part of NCA. 

A small number of the Oldham population on the border with Manchester access services at North 

Manchester General.  Patients who are referred to a clinic at North Manchester General will be 

under the care of MFT and therefore some diagnostics or surgery required as part of their 

treatment may include services at other MFT sites, including Manchester Royal Infirmary. The 

changes being made will not affect where patients access outpatient clinics, but will affect where 

any follow on care as part of that pathway is delivered.  

Table 3 

Specialty/service Estimated number of Oldham population affected 

DEXA ~40 (10% of 420 affected) 

ENT ~895 (10% of 8,950 affected)* 

Trauma and Orthopeadics 

- Planned surgery 

- Emergency surgery (~650 people) 

~150 (10% of 1,500 affected)* 

<10 (1% of 655 affected) 

Urology ~70 (10% of 700 affected) 

*This represents a proportion of the current patients. When implemented, Oldham residents may 

choose to have their elective orthopaedic / ENT care at Fairfield General / Royal Oldham and as 

such this figure may be lower. 

 

5.  Next steps and recommendation 

The preceding sections describe the background, progress to date and latest stages of 

disaggregation in order to provide Scrutiny with an overview of the phase three service changes 

and their impact. Further detail is available on request, however all of the above activities and 

developments have been overseen by a nominated group which includes representation from the 

Oldham locality 

The Health Scrutiny committee is asked to endorse the assessment made by the sponsoring 

group that none of the changes identified in phase 3 constitute a ‘substantial variation’.  

Page 24



 

 9 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 25



 

 10 

 
Appendix 1: Service Change Framework for GM ICB 

 

 

Appendix 2: NMGH Catchment map 

Bury:
1. Pilkington Park
2. Besses o’th’ Barn
3. St Mary’s
4. Holyrood
5. Sedgeley

Rochdale:
6. West Middleton
7. North Middleton
8. South Middleton
9. East Middleton

Oldham:
16. Chadderton South
17. Failsworth West
18. Failsworth East

Salford:
19. Kersal & 

Broughton Park
20. Broughton
21. Blackfriars & 

Trinity

North Manchester:
10. Higher Blackley
11. Crumpsall
12. Charlestown
13. Moston
14. Cheetham
15. Harpurhey

City of Manchester:
22. Deansgate
23. Piccadilly
24. Ancoats & Beswick
25. Miles Platting & 

Newton Heath
26. Clayton & Openshaw

 
Page 26



 

 11 

Appendix 3: Substantial Variation Assessments 

Service Change Proposal for DEXA Scans 
The proposal is that the management and provision of consultant referred bone density (DEXA) 
scans for NMGH and its catchment population should be transferred from the Northern Care 
Alliance NHS FT (NCA) to Manchester University NHS FT (MFT) and be provided at the Manchester 
Royal Infirmary (MRI) site. 
 
DEXA scans are not provided at the NMGH site and at present, patients from the NMGH 
catchment area who are referred by NMGH consultants travel to Royal Oldham Hospital (ROH) for 
this scan.  Common referring specialties are rheumatology, breast, orthopaedics and elderly care. 
Patients often receive the rest of their care at NMGH but must travel to ROH for this specific 
diagnostic test. This means that most of the patient care is delivered in the MFT EPR “Hive”, but 
these specific tests are provided for under NCA systems. There is a risk that information is lost 
when transferring information between MFT and NCA systems. This proposed change would bring 
all aspects of patient care for this cohort into MFT systems. 
 
Substantial variation assessment: 

Domain   

Patient 
Population 

Affected 

• The patient population affected is the NMGH catchment for the 
outpatient DEXA scan service. 

• The population affected is largely those patients resident in North 
Manchester.  

• Currently residents in this area travel to ROH for this scan, it is 
proposed that this will be provided at MRI. 

• Based on historic activity patterns the change of location will affect 
approximately 420 patients per year (Manchester ~230, Bury ~60, 
Rochdale ~40, Oldham ~40 and Salford ~40 per year based on 
historic activity. 

 Patient choice will be maintained or improved. 

• Overall capacity will be maintained.   
 

Not 
Substantial 
Variation 

Access  A full travel analysis has been completed for the affected 
population.   

 Currently residents in this area travel to ROH for this scan, it is 
proposed that this will be provided at MRI. 

 Public transport times are improved for most residents in the 
NMGH catchment area when comparing travel to MRI compared to 
ROH. Some residents in the east of the catchment area will 
experience increased journey times. Similarly, car journey times are 
improved for residents in the east and south of the catchment with 
residents in the west experiencing longer journey times. 
 

Not 
Substantial 
Variation 

Page 27



 

 12 

Domain   

Type / 
Rationale for 

proposed 
service 
change 

 The change forms a part of strategic plans to integrate NMGH into 
MFT to maximise the benefits of single services. The strategic 
approach has previously been agreed through a robust and rigorous 
process, with this proposal being one of several changes to achieve 
the previously agreed vision for a single hospital service for 
Manchester.  

 The implementation of the Hive Electronic Patient Record (EPR) 

system at NMGH has further necessitated the changes as the 

service currently navigates the complexities of working across two 

separate digital environments. This involves access to more than 

one system with increased potential for human error. 

 The proposal is a partial change to existing service provision with 
local access retained. There is no change to the service for patients 
from the Bury, HMR and Oldham locality catchments and an 
equivalent service provision for NMGH catchment patients.  

Not 
Substantial 
Variation 

Wider 
community 

& other 
services 

• Limited/no impact on co-dependent services. 

• The proposal forms part of large-scale plans to deliver patient 
benefits through the creation of single services within a single 
hospital trust for Manchester. Benefits include the use of the new 
electronic patient record system across every MFT site and close 
digital integration with primary care.  

• There are no wider community impacts. 

• There is no adverse impact on health inequalities as current service 

provision will be maintained. 

 Not 
Substantial 
Variation 

NHSE Four 
Tests & 

Stakeholder 
Views 

• Support from clinical commissioners to be progressed alongside the 
development of plans. 

• Proposal supported by key stakeholders and will be further 
progressed alongside the development of plans. 

• Strong consultant staff engagement, input and support. 

• Communication with patients will explain the changes and offer the 
opportunity for further engagement.  However, as patients are 
expected to receive care at their current location, and remain under 
their current Consultant, it is not intended to undertake an active 
Patient Choice exercise. 

Not 
Substantial 
Variation 

Recommendation: 
 
It is recommended that the service change proposals for Dexa scanning does not constitute 
substantial variation and that decision-making on the assurance of the change proposal should be 
taken through the Greater Manchester Integrated Care Board.  
Key aspects of the rationale for this recommendation include: 

 This change represents a small number of patients who already travel for this specific diagnostic 
test.  

 This proposed change means an improvement in journey times for most of the catchment 
population. 

 

Page 28



 

 13 

Service Change Proposal - ENT 
 
Electively, the ENT service for NMGH catchment residents includes outpatients (at NMGH and 
FGH), day case and inpatient elective care (FGH for adults, ROH for children). ENT cancer surgery 
is undertaken at MRI. Non-elective ENT presentations at NMGH for adults are treated on site (in 
the limited cases when immediate surgery is required) or transferred to FGH for adults or 
transferred to ROH for children.  

ENT is typically a core service of a District General Hospital, however, there has not been a full 
ENT offer at NMGH for some time. This means that some NMGH catchment residents may need to 
travel to FGH or ROH for routine ENT outpatients and all minor procedures. Through the 
disaggregation of the service, MFT propose to create an enhanced ENT service at NMGH. This 
service would be provided for adults by the ENT Managed Single Service which is led by MRI. For 
children the NMGH service would be provided by RMCH clinicians. This will also allow emergency 
ENT provision at NMGH to be enhanced, through a locally based team of surgeons; at present, on 
call and inpatient care is provided on a visiting basis from FGH. 

Disaggregation of the service and creation of this service at NMGH requires the following pathway 
changes: 

Patient 
catchment 

Pathway Current Delivery 
Site 

Proposed 
Delivery 
Site 

Catchment Activity 

NMGH Adult acute inpatients FGH NMGH 250 NEL 

NMGH Adult day case and elective 
procedures 

FGH NMGH 350 DC, 110 EL 

NMGH Adult outpatient procedures 
 

NMGH/ FGH NMGH 6,000 

NMGH Paediatric acute inpatients ROH NMGH 25 NEL 

NMGH Paediatric day case and elective 
procedures 

ROH NMGH 200 DC, <5 EL 

NMGH Paediatric outpatient procedures NMGH/ ROH NMGH 1,500-2,000 

*Excludes ENT cancer resections, which are currently and will remain undertaken at MRI 

There are no planned changes for the NCA population and therefore this paper and assessment is 
only for the NMGH catchment.   

Substantial Variation Assessment: 

Domain Assessment 
 

Assessment 

Patient 
Population 

Affected 

 Based on an initial review of 2019 activity patterns the change proposal 
will affect c.950 inpatients per year and ~8,000 outpatients from the 
NMGH catchment. This is broken down in the table above. For a locality 
breakdown see appendix 1. 

 This means that these patients will be able to access care for this core 
service closer to home whereas currently many adults and children need 
to travel – often for routine care. 

 Children within the NMGH catchment currently being referred to RMCH 
will also be able to access their outpatient and elective day case 
procedures at NMGH. 

 In addition, patient choice will be a key feature of the proposal, ensuring 
that these patients will still be able to choose to continue to access the 
existing provider/site for planned activity should they wish to do so.  

Not 
substantial 
variation 

Page 29



 

 14 

Domain Assessment 
 

Assessment 

 Based on an initial review of 2019 activity patterns the change proposal 
will affect no patients from the NCA catchment.  

 The proposal ensures that there is no reduction in total capacity levels for 
the system. 

Access For NMGH catchment residents 

 A full travel analysis has been completed. 

 Journey times to NMGH are shorter or considerably shorter for the NMGH 
catchment population compared to both FGH and ROH by both car and 
public transport.  

 When compared to FGH public transport journey times are the same or 
up to 60 minutes shorter to NMGH. 

 Journey times are improved to NMGH compared to ROH for the majority 
of the NMGH catchment population except for wards in Oldham – 
residents in these wards may wish to choose the NCA for their ENT care. 

 Travel costs are expected to decrease in all cases. 
 

Not 
substantial 
variation 

Type / 
Rationale 

for 
proposed 

service 
change 

 The change forms a part of previously agreed plans to integrate NMGH 
into MFT to maximise the benefits of single services. This has been 
previously agreed through a robust and rigorous process with the service 
change proposal one of several changes to achieve the previously agreed 
vision for a single hospital service for Manchester. 

 The proposal changes existing service provision to significantly improve 
local access.  

 Emergency ENT provision at NMGH will be enhanced, through a locally 
based team of surgeons; at present, on call and inpatient care is provided 
on a visiting basis from FGH. Adult patients will no longer need to be 
transferred to FGH for their procedure. 

 There is no reduction in overall system capacity.  

 A full Quality Impact Assessment has been undertaken.  Patient 
experience will be improved, and risks reduced. No adverse impacts were 
identified across any domain. 

Not 
substantial 
variation 

Wider 
community 

& other 
services 

 There is no impact on any co-dependent services. 

 The proposal forms part of large-scale plans to deliver patient benefits 
through the creation of single services within a single hospital trust for 
Manchester.  

• There are no known wider impacts across the community.  

• A full equality impact assessment has been completed. The proposal will 
benefit the diverse and relatively deprived population of North 
Manchester, which should contribute to narrowing of health inequalities. 
No negative impacts of the proposed changes were identified. There will 
be a continuous review of the changes to ensure no negative impacts to 
any patients and rapid mobilisation of mitigations in the event impacts 
are identified. 

Not 
substantial 
variation 

NHSE Four 
Tests & 

Stakeholder 
Views 

• Patients will continue to be able to choose where they would like to 
access care and can choose either an MFT or NCA pathway. 

• The proposals will be presented to the Patient and Public Advisory Group 
(PPAG) of Manchester Health and Care Commissioning, NCA Healthwatch 
and Manchester and Trafford Healthwatch. 

• A patient survey is also planned.  

• The proposed changes and new service provision are clinically led seeking 
to deliver consistently high-quality care. Care will be delivered to the 
same standards as at present, as a minimum. The future pathways will 

Not 
substantial 
variation 

Page 30



 

 15 

Domain Assessment 
 

Assessment 

provide enhanced options for diagnostic pathways for patients.  

• ENT staff have been substantially engaged on plans and progress for the 
proposals through a combination of routine and extraordinary forums. 
Clinical and operational leadership are involved in all discussion and 
decision making with regard to the changes and have therefore been 
responsible for communicating with staff. 

 

Recommendation:  
 
It is recommended that this change does not constitute substantial variation. 
This proposal is to create a core ad comprehensive service at NMGH provided care closer to home with 
significant improvements in journey time and cost of travel for NMGH catchment residents. 
 
This proposal allows for creation of safer emergency provision to the busy NMGH A&E and a more robust 
on call / out of hours rota. The ENT emergency service will be equitable to other Manchester ENT patients.  
 
 
 
 

Table: estimated number of affected patients per locality per annum based on historic activity. 
 

Locality ENT 

Manchester  4923 

Bury 1343 

Rochdale 895 

Oldham 895 

Salford  895 

Total 8,950 

 
 
 

Page 31



 

 16 

Substantial Variation Assessment – Urology 

 
NMGH is currently the inpatient Urology site for the former PAHT footprint. Outpatients and other 
aspects of the service are provided at ROH, FGH and RI. NCA and MFT have agreed that full 
disaggregation of the service is the preferred exit strategy in line with other complex services. This 
would mean that ~30% of activity is retained by MFT (the NMGH catchment population) and ~70% 
would be provided by NCA for its population.  
 
The NCA have previously agreed a model of care for Urology with commissioners through a prior 
decision-making process. The model is as follows: 

 Bury residents to receive inpatient urology care at Salford Royal Hospital 

 Rochdale and Oldham residents to receive inpatient urology care at Royal Oldham Hospital 

Therefore, the scope of this paper is focused on the changes for the NMGH catchment.  
Once the service is disaggregated the service at NMGH will be considerably smaller than currently and 
it will no longer be viable to maintain the full current model of care at NMGH. Instead, it is proposed 
that NMGH provides a comprehensive suite of local care including outpatients, urological 
investigations, day case and short stay, high volume low complexity surgery. A robust on call 
arrangement is proposed to ensure safe care for patients presenting with urological emergencies. 
Complex inpatient urology surgery is proposed to be delivered at MRI. 
 
This represents phase 1 of the urology single service model development within MFT. Wider 
discussions are underway to determine the longer-term model for urological care across MRI, 
Wythenshawe, NMGH and Trafford. 
 
Substantial variation assessment: 

Domain Assessment 

 

Assessment 

 

Patient 

Population 

Affected 

• The NMGH catchment is affected by the proposal, this includes 

Manchester residents in the Northern part of the city, as well as a 

proportion of Bury (typically Prestwich and Whitefield) and HMR (typically 

Middleton) residents, who consider NMGH as their local district general 

hospital.  

• Most patients will continue to access care at NMGH for outpatient 

(~14,500 appointments per annum), day case (~1,350 procedures per 

annum) and high-volume low acuity urology surgery (~800 procedures per 

annum) and diagnostic services.  

• The activity data shows that approximately ~150 elective and ~550 non-

elective inpatients (~4% of NMGH urology patients; of these an estimated 

~385 are Manchester residents, ~105 Bury residents, ~70 residents from 

Oldham, Rochdale and Salford respectively) will be affected by the 

proposed changes and would receive care at MRI. These represent 

patients needing more complex inpatient care– likely once in a lifetime 

surgery. All outpatient care related to this surgery will continue to be 

provided at NMGH. 

• The proposal will include a review of patient pathways to ensure effective 

access to a full range of pathways designed to optimise care within MFT.  

• Patient choice will be a key feature of the proposal, ensuring that patients 

have a choice in which organisation to access for planned activity. The 

Not substantial 

variation  

Page 32



 

 17 

Domain Assessment 

 

Assessment 

 

NHS constitution emphasises patient choice, and the patient will have 

access via the applicable DOS provisions.  

Access  For the small number of urology patients who would receive their care at 

MRI, journey times to MRI compared to NMGH are longer by public 

transport and car for a proportion of the population affected. MRI is closer 

for a smaller proportion of the population.  

 However, MRI and NMGH are relatively close (~5 miles) and there are 

good transport links to the MRI for much of the population. 

 Patients will only need to travel for their inpatient care. All outpatient 

activity will be provided at NMGH.  

Not substantial 
variation 

Type / 

Rationale for 

proposed 

service change 

 The proposed change forms a part of previously agreed plans to integrate 

NMGH into MFT to maximise the benefits of single services. This has been 

previously agreed through a robust and rigorous process. The service 

change proposal is one of several changes to achieve the previously 

agreed vision for a single hospital service for Manchester.  

 The proposal is a partial change to existing service provision with local 

access retained for outpatient, day case and high-volume low complexity 

urology and diagnostic services.   

 The proposal will see North Manchester catchment patients accessing 

inpatient care at established MFT services. 

 There is a strong focus on outcomes and clinical quality as phase 1 of the 

proposal forms part of the urology single service model development 

within MFT.  

 A key part of the proposal is to maximise care closer to home through the 

strengthening of ambulatory pathways. Intended benefits include a 

greater proportion of patients seen, treated and discharged without the 

requirement to be admitted to a bed.  

 There is also a strong focus on safety as phase 1 of the proposal will 

enable North Manchester catchment and NCA patients to receive care 

from one organisation and in one digital system. This will mitigate risks 

associated with the transfer of MFT and NCA patients and information 

between systems.  

 A QIA and EQIA have been completed and these support the principle of 

ensuring that incorporation of activity into MFT will have no negative 

impact on quality  

 

Not substantial 
variation  

Wider 

community & 

other services 

• The changes release capacity at NMGH which could be reprofiled to 

support other North Manchester catchment activity.   

• The proposal forms part of large-scale plans to deliver patient benefits 

through the creation of single services within a single hospital trust for 

Manchester. Benefits include the use of the new electronic patient record 

system across every MFT site.   

• The patients who will access MFT services will be absorbed into the 

current MFT infrastructure  

• There are no known wider impacts across the community.   

Not substantial 
variation  

Page 33



 

 18 

Domain Assessment 

 

Assessment 

 

• A full equality impact assessment and quality impact assessment has been 

completed.  

NHSE Four Tests 

& Stakeholder 

Views 

Strong clinical evidence base 

• The proposal forms part of large-scale plans to deliver patient benefits 

through the creation of single services within a single hospital trust for 

Manchester. Benefits include the use of the new electronic patient record 

system across every MFT site.  

• Similar hub and spoke models already exist and the model of care aligns to 

GIRFT recommendations including Urology Area Network developments  

 

Strong public and patient engagement 

• Public and patient engagement forms a key component of developing the 

service change proposal with continued activities to further enhance 

service user engagement. This includes bespoke surveys to be undertaken 

in outpatient settings, discussion of proposals at MHCC Public and Patient 

Advisory Group, Healthwatch presentations the development of a QIA and 

EQIA and full consideration of patient choice in terms of which 

organisation to access for planned activity.  

 

Strong staff engagement, input and support 

• There is strong engagement from clinical and operational staff involved in 

the service across MFT. A series of MFT urology workshops have been held 

to identify how the service at NMGH could be developed and delivered in 

the short, medium and long term. Clinical discussion to advance aspects of 

the clinical model are continuing and this includes clinical lead discussion 

with members of the Urology team, NMGH, MRI Medical Directors and 

inputs from Group Strategy and the WTWA Senior Leadership Team.  

• MFT and the NCA also have strong post-transaction joint working 

arrangements and continue to work through these structures to 

coordinate disaggregation of the more complex services which includes 

Urology. A bipartite clinical working group, workforce group and 

disaggregation group provide oversight, leadership and support for the 

phase 1 proposal which will see complete disaggregation of the historical 

PAHT footprint for urology as the NMGH urology service will fully separate 

from the NCA urology service. 

Not substantial 
variation  

Recommendation:  

 

It is recommended that the service change proposals for Urology does not constitute substantial variation and that 
decision-making on the assurance of the change proposal should be taken through the Greater Manchester Integrated 
Care Board. Key aspects of the rationale for this recommendation include: 
 

• This change is a consequence of previously agreed decisions taken on the formation of a single hospital service for 

Manchester (with NMGH to be integrated into MFT) and for the formation of the Northern Care Alliance with 

both organisations seeking to optimise patient benefits through the delivery of integrated single services. 

• Most patients will continue to access care locally at NMGH for outpatient, day case and high-volume low acuity 

urology and diagnostic services. Patients needing to access MRI will do so for once in a lifetime inpatient surgery. 

Page 34



 

 19 

Domain Assessment 

 

Assessment 

 

This model aligns with GIRFT recommendations.  

• The change proposal has followed a structured approach with full support from commissioners/localities and clear 
evidence of service user involvement that will continue through to and beyond implementation of changes.  
 

 

 

Page 35



 

 20 

 

Service Change proposal - Trauma & Orthopaedics  

 
Before transaction, Trauma and Orthopaedics (T&O) operated as a single service across the 

former PAHT footprint delivered from North Manchester General Hospital (NMGH), Royal Oldham 

Hospital (ROH), Fairfield General Hospital (FGH) and Rochdale Infirmary (RI). 

Under PAHT, the Trust operated a two-axis model whereby NMGH and FGH served as one axis 

(with trauma surgery delivered at NMGH) and ROH and RI served as the other (with trauma 

surgery at ROH). All electives for the totality of PAHT were centralised at FGH with several day 

case operating lists at RI.   

 

As part of the overall Transaction, NCA and MFT agree that full disaggregation of T&O services for 

North Manchester is the preferred exit strategy and agree for this to happen in line with other 

complex services by the 31 March 2024. 

 

Once disaggregated, MFT will provide an orthopaedic elective and trauma service for NMGH 

catchment patients, and the NCA will provide an elective and trauma service for the FGH 

catchment patients, connecting into their wider organisational models.  

 

Elective 

The elective orthopaedic service on the NMGH/FGH axis consists of outpatients delivered locally 

and elective day case and elective inpatient procedures largely provided out of FGH, with some 

daycase procedures at RI.  

 

After disaggregation, MFT will provide elective services to North Manchester catchment GP 
referrals and all NMGH A&E arrivals. The MFT site where day case and inpatient procedures are 
provided will be Trafford General Hospital (TGH).  Patients will be able to choose whether to 
access their elective care at TGH or FGH. NCA will continue to provide elective service for Bury 
catchment GP referrals as well as FGH A&E arrivals. FGH A&E patients requiring Trauma surgery 
will be redirected to Royal Oldham Hospital (ROH).  
 
A breakdown of proposed delivery sites following disaggregation is shown in the table below.  
 
Trauma 

The non-elective/trauma service consists of virtual fracture clinic (VFC), fracture clinic (FC), day 

case trauma, and inpatient trauma. This is serviced by a trauma rota covering each axis. Patients 

arriving at FGH requiring a trauma procedure are transferred by ambulance to NMGH for 

treatment.  It is assumed that NWAS will continue to convey trauma patients to NMGH and ROH 

and current volumes are not expected to change. 

 

After disaggregation, patients arriving at FGH A&E for treatment will no longer be transferred to 

NMGH for trauma care but instead will transfer (or be conveyed directly by ambulance) to ROH 

for inpatient trauma and RI for ambulatory trauma.  There will be no change to the delivery of 

fracture clinics, these will remain at FGH.   

 

There will be no change for residents living in the NMGH catchment area – these residents will 

continue to access trauma care at NMGH as they do now.  

 

Page 36



 

 21 

A breakdown of proposed delivery sites following disaggregation is shown in the table below. 
 

Category Service 
Current site of 

delivery 
Proposed site of 

delivery for (NCA) 
Proposed site of 

delivery for (MFT) 

Trauma 
Services 

Fracture 
Clinic 

FGH & NMGH FGH 
(no change) 

NMGH 
(no change) 

Day case NMGH & RI (low 
volue) 

RI NMGH 
(no change) 

Inpatient NMGH ROH NMGH 
(no change) 

Elective 
services 

Outpatients FGH & NMGH FGH 
(no change) 

NMGH 
(no change) 

Day Case FGH & RI FGH & RI 
(no change) 

TGH  

Inpatient FGH FGH 
(no change) 

TGH  

 
Substantial variation assessment: 

Domain Narrative 

 

Assessment 

 

Patient 

Population 

Affected 

The patient population affected by the proposed service change will 

predominately be those that live in the NMGH and FGH catchment areas.  

 

Trauma – affects FGH catchment residents 

 The trauma planning assumption indicates that activity derived via an A&E 

attendance will be served by the Trust associated with that A&E. 

Currently, Fairfield General Hospital (FGH) arrivals (NCA) are transferred to 

NMGH (MFT) for trauma procedures/treatment.  

 Initial modelling (2019/20) has identified that approximately 650 patients 

are transferred from FGH A&E to NMGH per year for a trauma. The 

distribution by locality is as follows: 

Locality Estimated maximum 
number affected per 
annum 

Bury ~400 

HMR ~200 

East 
Lancashire 

~20 

Bolton ~10 

Oldham <10 

Manchester <10 

Other ~10 

Total ~650 

 

 Of these patients, 296 have an inpatient trauma procedure at NMGH, 170 

have a day case procedure at NMGH and the remaining 188 patients are 

discharged without procedure 

• Under the new clinical model, FGH patients will no longer be transferred 

to NMGH but instead will transfer (or be conveyed directly by ambulance) 

to ROH for inpatient trauma and RI for ambulatory trauma.  

• There will be no change to the delivery of Fracture Clinic, these will remain 

Not substantial 

variation 

Page 37



 

 22 

Domain Narrative 

 

Assessment 

 

at FGH.   

• It is assumed that NWAS will continue to convey trauma patients to 

NMGH and ROH and current volumes are not expected to change.  

• People living in the NM catchment area will continue to access trauma 

services at NMGH as per the current service model, and there will be no 

change.   

 

Elective 

• For the NM catchment most people requiring planned / elective care will 

continue to receive a significant element of their care at NMGH, including 

outpatients, tests and diagnostic procedures.  

• Where patients require an operation/procedure, patients will be able to 

choose whether to access this care at the NCA elective hub at FGH as they 

do now or at the MFT elective hub at Trafford General Hospital.   

• This is expected to impact ~1,500 patients per year based on 2019 activity 

profile (it is estimated this could affect ~825 Manchester residents, ~225 

Bury residents and ~150 residents from Oldham, Rochdale and Salford 

respectively).   

• The elective pathways for the NCA population will remain unchanged.  

• Patient choice will be a key feature of the proposal. The NHS constitution 

emphasises patient choice, and the patient will have access via the 

applicable DOS provisions. Some people who reside in the North 

Manchester General Hospital catchment area may choose FGH (Bury) for 

their surgery and this will mean that they will also have outpatient 

appointments and diagnostics at FGH.  Others may choose to have their 

surgery at TGH. If so, they would have outpatient appointments and 

diagnostics at NMGH, and just the surgery element of their pathway at 

TGH. 

 

Access Trauma  

• Residents in the NMGH catchment area will continue to access trauma 

services at NMGH. All elements of the trauma pathway will continue to be 

delivered from NMGH and little will change from a patient access 

perspective for patients in this area.   

• People living in the FGH catchment area, under the new service model, 

will no longer be transferred to NMGH for their trauma surgery but 

instead will transfer (or be conveyed directly by ambulance) to ROH for 

inpatient trauma and RI for ambulatory trauma. There will be no change 

to the delivery of Fracture Clinic, this will remain at FGH.  NCA have 

sufficient capacity to take on this volume of trauma activity from FGH 

arrivals supported by pathway improvement and efficiency opportunities. 

• The key headline messages for trauma are related to the change in travel 

time for patients travelling/being conveyed to ROH or RI instead of NMGH 

under the new proposed clinical model: 

o The average journey time by car for NCA patients overall is 

approximately 5 minutes shorter on average travelling to ROH 

instead of NMGH and 3 to 4 minutes shorter on average when 

travelling to RI instead of NMGH. 

o For the likely FGH catchment mostly impacted by the change, the 

Not substantial 
variation 

Page 38



 

 23 

Domain Narrative 

 

Assessment 

 

average journey time by car is longer by 1-2 minutes for Bury 

residents and shorter by 5-6 minutes for Rochdale residents when 

travelling to ROH rather than NMGH. When travelling to RI rather 

than NMGH by car, Bury residents will see a 2-3 minute longer 

journey and Rochdale residents will see a 1-2 minute reduction. 

o The average journey time by public transport for NCA patients 

overall is approximately 12 minutes shorter on average travelling 

to ROH instead of NMGH and 12 minutes shorter when travelling 

to RI instead of NMGH. 

o For the likely FGH catchment mostly impacted by the change, the 

average journey time by public transport is longer increasing from 

51 to 83 minutes for Bury residents and shorter by 20 minutes for 

Rochdale residents when travelling to ROH rather than NMGH.  

When travelling to RI rather than NMGH by public transport, Bury 

residents will see a 14-15 minute longer journey and Rochdale 

residents will see a 5-6 minute reduction. Some Bury residents 

may already choose to go to a different hospital site that is closer 

e.g., Bolton or Salford.  

o The patient survey conducted with 88 patients using NCA services 
indicated that 83% of patients travelled by car or taxi and 5% 
travelled by public transport to FGH. 

 

Elective 

• Outpatient and diagnostic activity will continue as per the current service 

model, both at NMGH and at FGH. More outpatient activity is likely to be 

delivered at NMGH than currently to ensure that people from the NMGH 

catchment area do not have to travel to FGH but can receive that element 

of their care at NMGH (patients can still make a choice).  

• However, people from the NMGH catchment area requiring an elective 

planned surgical procedure/operation will now be able to choose whether 

to access this at FGH in Bury or Trafford General Hospital. 

• Access for elective planned surgical procedure/operation for the NCA 

population will remain unchanged.  

• A detailed travel analysis has been undertaken.  The key headline 

messages for elective are related to the change in travel time for patients 

travelling to TGH instead of FGH under the new clinical model: 

o The average journey time by car for the overall catchment area 

(North Manchester) is 3 minutes longer to TGH than to FGH (19 

minutes compared to 16 minutes).  

o Average journey times by public transport are, on average, 12 

minutes longer to TGH than FGH (76 minutes compared to 63.9 

minutes) but are more direct with fewer interchanges. As such the 

cost of public transport is marginally lower.   

o Residents in the south of the catchment are closer to Trafford 

General; residents in the north of the catchment are closer to 

Fairfield General. Patients may therefore choose to attend their 

closest hospital. 

Page 39



 

 24 

Domain Narrative 

 

Assessment 

 

Type / 

Rationale for 

proposed 

service change 

Elective  

 The service change forms a part of previously agreed plans to integrate 

NMGH into MFT to maximise the benefits of single services and is part of 

the transaction process. 

 It is paramount that a long-term and sustainable service model for the 

ongoing provision of trauma and orthopaedic services at NMGH is 

established for the NMGH catchment area.  

 The rationale for offering orthopaedic elective surgery at Trafford General 

Hospital as well as FGH for the NMGH catchment area is to maintain 

access to high quality, safe and highly reliable care, and to benefit from 

the treatment outcomes associated with a ‘high volume, low complexity’ 

clinical model, based on recommendations from GIRFT, which Trafford 

General delivers. These models of care are associated with a better 

patient experience, less variation and better patient outcomes.  The 

models are reflective of recommendations made through GIRFT and TGH 

already operates a GIRFT type Surgical Hub for Orthopaedics, and this 

service would increase capacity to accommodate the transfer of NMGH 

patients.  

 The new clinical model for orthopaedics for the NMGH catchment area 

will benefit from the Single Service model rolled out across MFT, 

delivering high quality and good outcomes for patients, in a more effective 

and efficient way, sustaining services now and into the future.  The NMGH 

service will benefit from the scale of the MFT T&O service and the size of 

the workforce. 

 

Trauma  

 Equally, changes to the provision of trauma care to the FGH catchment 

area will enable the NCA to scale up and benefit from a Trust wide single 

service model across multiple sites for T&O services  

 Consolidation of trauma activity will lead to better outcomes and shorter 

lengths of stay for patients in a more effective and efficient way. Patients 

will benefit from the strong T&O patient quality indictors at ROH (i.e. LoS 

and readmissions) 

 Patients will also benefit from improved treatment outcomes associated 

with a ‘high volume, low complexity’ clinical model at RI based on 

recommendations from GIRFT. These models of care are associated with a 

better patient experience, less variation and better patient outcome.  

Not substantial 
variation 

Wider 

community & 

other services 

• The proposal forms part of large-scale plans to deliver patient benefits, 

high quality, and sustainable care with better outcomes through the 

creation of single services for NCA and MFT.  For example, the recent 

deployment of a single electronic patient record across all MFT sites will 

derive significant benefits to the standard and quality of care.   It means 

that patient records will be contained in one space and will not cross 

multiple digital systems in different organisations.  

• There are no other known wider implications or co-dependencies across 

Not substantial 
variation 

Page 40



 

 25 

Domain Narrative 

 

Assessment 

 

the communities of the proposed changes.  

 

NHSE Four Tests 

& Stakeholder 

Views 

Strong clinical evidence base 

• The proposal forms part of large-scale plans to deliver patient benefits 

through the creation of single services for NCA and MFT.  Benefits include 

the use of the new electronic patient record system across every MFT site. 

• Delivering a planned elective orthopaedic service adopting the HVLC (high 

volume, low complex) clinical delivery model will deliver a service that is 

high quality, highly reliable, effective, and sustainable.    

• Consolidation of trauma activity will lead to better outcomes and shorter 

lengths of stay for patients in a more effective and efficient way. 

 

Strong public and patient engagement 

• Public and patient engagement forms a key component of developing the 

service change proposal with continued activities to further enhance 

service user engagement. This includes, patient surveys and engagement 

events, discussion of proposals at Manchester Public and Patient Advisory 

Group, Healthwatch presentations the development of a QIA and EQIA 

and full consideration of patient choice in terms of which organisation to 

access for planned activity. The NHS constitution emphasises patient 

choice, and the patient will have access via the applicable DOS provisions.  

 

Support from clinical commissioners 

• Some of this work includes reorganising or restructuring services, and a 

process of engagement and dialogue with commissioners is being 

maintained to manage these changes. The proposal is being reviewed by 

Integrated Care Boards / Localities with the process led by the Place Based 

Lead for Oldham on behalf of the Integrated Care Board. The proposal has 

and will continue to be developed through a collaborative process with 

system partners.   

 

Strong staff engagement, input, and support 

• There is strong engagement from clinical and operational staff involved in 

the service across MFT and the NCA. A series of workshops have been held 

to identify how the service at NMGH and FGH could be developed and 

delivered in the short, medium, and long term. Clinical discussion to 

advance aspects of the clinical model are continuing with both 

organisations and this includes clinical lead discussion with members of 

the T&O teams and Leadership Teams.  

• MFT and the NCA also have strong post-transaction joint working 

arrangements and continue to work through these structures to 

coordinate disaggregation of the more complex services which includes 

T&O.  A bipartite clinical working group, workforce group and 

disaggregation group will provide oversight, leadership and support which 

will see complete disaggregation of the historical PAHT footprint for T&O 

as the NMGH T&O service will fully separate from the NCA T&O service. 

Not substantial 
variation 

Page 41



 

 26 

Domain Narrative 

 

Assessment 

 

 

Recommendation:  

It is recommended that the service change proposals for trauma and orthopaedic single service model development 

within MFT does not constitute substantial variation and that decision-making on the assurance of the change 

proposal should be taken through the Greater Manchester Integrated Care Board. Key aspects of the rationale for this 

recommendation include: 

• This change is a consequence of previously agreed decisions taken on the formation of a single hospital service for 

Manchester (with NMGH to be integrated into MFT) and for the formation of the Northern Care Alliance with 

both organisations seeking to optimise patient benefits through the delivery of integrated single services. 

• The key change for elective planned (inpatient/daycase) care affects residents in the NMGH catchment area. 

Patients will be able to choose whether to have their procedure at TGH or FGH.  The travel analysis has 

demonstrated that the travel time, both by car and public transport to TGH is longer than to FGH, but not 

substantially. Travel to TGH by public transport is more direct with fewer changes. Travel by car is slightly more 

expensive, however, the cost of public transport is lower. The south of the catchment is closer to TGH; the north 

closer to FGH. There are existing mechanisms for patients and their carers to access support with travelling to 

hospital and the costs of travel. These will be promoted to patients through patient letters, MyMFT and referral / 

booking teams. 

• The key changes for trauma care (patients presenting at A&E) affects residents in the FGH catchment, 

predominantly Bury. These residents will transfer from FGH (or be conveyed directly by ambulance) to ROH for 

inpatient trauma and RI for ambulatory trauma. The travel analysis has demonstrated that the travel time by car 

for Bury patients is minimally higher and for Rochdale residents is significantly low. By public transport, for all 

Bury residents is higher but lower for Rochdale residents. Some Bury patients may already choose to go to a 

different hospital site that is closer. 

 

Page 42



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Purpose of the Report 
 
To update the Committee on progress to date on embedding recommendations of the 
Government’s 10-year drugs plan ‘From harm to hope’ and local work on policy 
implementation.  
 
To provide an update on the mobilisation of the Adult Integrated Substance Misuse 
Treatment and Recovery Service delivered by Turning Point – Presentation from Annie 
Lynn, Senior Operations Manager.  
 

Executive Summary 
 
Having a high functioning drug and alcohol treatment and recovery offer is an essential 
component of the range of activity required to achieve better population health and reduce 
demand on health and social care services. 
 
In December 2021, a national policy paper – From harm to hope; A 10-year drugs plan to 
cut crime and save lives’ was published, setting out the ambition to give people with drug 
addiction a route to a productive and drug free life.  
 
The Oldham Drug and Alcohol Partnership Group was established in April 2023 and has 
been overseeing workstreams that are required to be delivered under the 10-year drug plan. 
This report summarises work to date to implement its recommendations and the GMCA 
Combatting Drugs Partnership. 
 

Report to Adult Social Care and Health Scrutiny Committee  

 
Drug and Alcohol Strategy: Adult Integrated 
Substance Misuse Treatment and Recovery in 
Oldham 
 

Portfolio Holder:  
Councillor Brownridge, Cabinet Member Health and Social Care 
 
Officer Contact: Dr Rebecca Fletcher, Director of Public Health 
 
Report Authors: Julian Guerriero, Senior Policy, Strategy and 
Commissioning Manager Public Health 
 
Ext. 8748 
 
7th September 2023 
 

Page 43

Agenda Item 9



 

  2 

 
Oldham and Rochdale Councils have in collaboration jointly commission Turning Point to 
deliver the drug and alcohol treatment and recovery service in both areas. Turning Point 
have been requested to attend the meeting to provide an update on the delivery model, its 
implementation and priorities that were initially presented to the Health Scrutiny Meeting on 
7th March 2023.  
 
Recommendations 
 
The Committee are asked to note the outcome of work over the last 6 months to embed the 
priorities of the Government’s 10-year drugs plan and progress to date from Turning Point 
in the delivery of the Adult Integrated Substance Misuse Treatment and Recovery Service.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 44



 

  3 

Adult Social Care and Health Scrutiny Committee 7th September 2023 
 
Drug and Alcohol Strategy; Adult Integrated Substance Misuse Treatment and Recovery in 
Oldham 
 
1 Strategic Background  
 
1.1. Under the Health and Social Care Act 2012, local authorities have a duty to reduce health 

inequalities and improve the health of their local population by ensuring that there are public 
health services aimed at reducing drug and alcohol misuse. The Greater Manchester Drug 
and Alcohol Strategy sets out the collective ambition to make Greater Manchester a place 
where everyone can have the best start in life, live well and age well, safe from the harms 
caused by drugs and alcohol. Reducing these harms is central to improving the safety, 
wellbeing and prosperity of our residents. 
 

1.2. In December 2021 a national policy paper – From harm to hope; A 10-year drugs plan to cut 
crime and save lives’ was published, setting out the ambition to give people with drug 
addiction a route to a productive and drug free life. 

 
1.3. The government’s 10-year plan aims to create a drug and alcohol treatment and recovery 

system via a full range of evidence-based interventions. It sets out the ambition to ensure 
accessibility to anyone experiencing substance addiction, ensuring individuals are treated 
as having a chronic health condition. The aim is to provide life-saving support and improve 
safety and productivity of local areas by reducing the harms that drug addiction can cause 
and maximising long-term recovery. 

 
1.4. The strategy encompasses recommendations outlined by an independent review by Dame 

Carol Black, including 3 key objectives:  
 
 Increase the proportion of people misusing drugs who access treatment and recovery 

support, including more young people, and earlier interventions for offenders to divert 
them away from the criminal justice system, particularly prison. 

 
 Ensure that the treatment and recovery package offered is of high quality and includes 

evidence-based drug treatment, mental and physical health interventions, and 
employment and housing support.  

 
 To reduce the demand for drugs and prevent problematic drug use, including use by 

vulnerable and minority groups and by recreational drug users. 
 

2 Oldham Drug and Alcohol Partnership Group 
 
2.1. The Oldham Drug and Alcohol Partnership Group was established in April 2023 and has 

been overseeing delivery of workstreams that are required to be achieved under the 10-year 
drug plan. This has included all elements that fall under criminal justice and that are captured 
under Oldham Supplementary Substance Misuse Treatment & Recovery Grant (SSMTRG). 

 
2.2 Progress is reported quarterly via the GMCA Drug & Alcohol Commissioning Group and to 

the Combatting Drugs Partnership (CDP) and Transformation Board (TB). Progress of the 
SSMTRG is reviewed by the regional Office for Health Improvement & Disparities (OHID) 
and Drug & Alcohol Improvement Support Team (DAIST). 

 
2.3 Current priority for the group is to agree/ review the Oldham Drug and Alcohol Delivery Plan 

and SSMTRG for 2024/25 and this work will commence October 2023. 
 
 

Page 45

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/from-harm-to-hope-a-10-year-drugs-plan-to-cut-crime-and-save-lives/from-harm-to-hope-a-10-year-drugs-plan-to-cut-crime-and-save-lives
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/independent-review-of-drugs-by-dame-carol-black-government-response
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/independent-review-of-drugs-by-dame-carol-black-government-response


 

  4 

3 Timeline of work to date 
 
3.1  The initial timeline for implementation of the Drugs Plan is summarised below. From July 

2022 onwards work has progressed to establish the Oldham Drug and Alcohol Partnership 
Group following national guidance for delivery partners:  

 

             
3.2 The focus has been on the delivery of services that engage more residents into treatment, 

improve treatment quality and increase resilience. The aspiration being to support residents 
and reduce the likelihood of them resorting to substance misuse and dependence caused by 
crisis, historical trauma or mental ill health.  

 
3.3 The budget for Drug and Alcohol treatment services in Oldham is made up of £2.8M from the 

core Local Authority public health budget.  There is also an additional £1.49M in time limited 
central government grants.  This is made up of the Supplementary Substance Misuse 
Treatment and Recovery Grant, In-patient Grant, Rough Sleeper Drug and Alcohol 
Treatment Grant, Individual Placement and Support, and Housing Support Grant.  There is 
also another £0.17M from a combination of HM Prison and Probation Service, and Alcohol 
Care Teams. 

 
3.4 There are five measures that we must report on nationally that are intended to improve the 

delivery of substance misuse services: 
 

1. Increase numbers in treatment 
The targets for increased numbers in treatment are discussed below in section 5.  
  

2. Reduce Drug and Alcohol Related Deaths 
There is a national ambition to reduce the numbers of drug and alcohol related deaths 
by 1,000 per year but this has not been translated into local targets.  The aim is to 
reduce the numbers of drug and alcohol related deaths.  In Oldham in 2020/21 there 
were a total of 24 deaths of people who were in drug and alcohol treatment.  18 of 
these were opiate users and 6 used alcohol only.   
 

3. Increase capacity in the workforce and improve training 
There is no local numerical target for increasing the workforce but there is a clear 
plan locally for increased recruitment with increased capacity across a range of 
professions including nurses, psychologists, and drug and alcohol workers.  
 

4. Improve engagement rates (continuity of care) for those residents released from 
custody and maintaining treatment and recovery when in the community 

Page 46



 

  5 

There is a national ambition for 75% of prison releases requiring substance misuse 
support to be transferred into community treatment within 3-weeks of release.  
Oldham has a local ambition of 85% in 2024/25.  Our baseline was 52% in 2021/22.  
 

5. Increase numbers accessing Residential Rehab by 2% of all those in treatment 
Oldham has the highest proportion in GM of adults in residential rehab as a proportion 
of all adults in treatment and the latest data shows this figure as already higher than 
2% (2018-2021)  

 
 
4  Oldham Drug and Alcohol Delivery Plan 
 
4.1 The latest version of the GM Combatting Drugs Partnership (CDP) Strategic Delivery Plan is 

attached below and incorporates: 
 

 The agreed activity and objectives from the first version of the delivery plan including 
actions from GMCA, GMP, and HMPS, in response to the requirements of the 
National Drug Strategy. 

 Activity and objectives gathered from other strategic partners which contribute to the 
work of the GM CDP inclusive of NHS GM. 

 Activity and objectives carried forward from the previous GM Drug and Alcohol 
Strategy. 

 
 4.2 The CDP Strategic Delivery Plan is overarching, and all local authorities are expected to 

reflect their own priorities in a localised version of their Drug and Alcohol Delivery Plan. Work 
is ongoing with partners to develop the Oldham plan and refine the 3 priority areas: 

 
1. Breaking Drug Supply Chains 
2. Delivery of a world-class treatment and recovery system 
3. Achieve a generational shift in the demand for drugs 

 

Oldham Drug & 

Alcohol Delivery Plan v03 (2).docx
  

 
5 Drug and Alcohol Outcome Framework Headline Figures 
 
5.1 The Committee will be aware that sitting behind the Combatting Drugs Partnership (CDP) 

Strategic Delivery Plan is the Greater Manchester Outcome Framework. The attached report 
summarises key headline areas and current targets measured against 2021/22 baseline for 
comparison. The areas covered in the attached document are: 
 

1. Numbers in Treatment 
2. Treatment Outcome Measure  
3. Continuity of Care  
4. Community Sentence Treatment Requirements 

 

GM Drug and 

Alcohol Headline Figures.docx
 

 
5.2  National Drug Treatment Monitoring System (NDTMS) & Public Health Outcome 

Framework (PHOF) data for Oldham is summarised below and indicate total number of 
adults in treatment (including offenders) against the Supplementary Substance Misuse 

Page 47



 

  6 

Treatment and Recovery Grant (SSMTRG) requirement of increasing overall numbers in 
treatment by 20% before the end of quarter 4 2024/25:  

 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.3 It is recognised that this is a challenging measure to achieve and is placing significant 

caseload pressures on the service. Nevertheless, work is ongoing to increase numbers in 
treatment against prevalence rates and levels of unmet need estimates 

 
6 Criminal Justice Treatment Pathways 
 
6.1  Continuity of Care: There has been a significant improvement in engagement rates for 

prisoners released from custody and being engaged/ maintained in treatment and last 
available data for quarter 1 2023/24 shows an engagement rate of 65% which is 13% 
increase from our baseline:  

 
Continuity of Care 

(Prison to Community) 
SSMTRG 
Baseline 
2021-22 

Latest Performance 
 Q1 2023/24 

Source NDTMS 

Change from 
Baseline 

SSMTRG 
 2023-24 
Ambition 

National  37% 38% 1% 75% 

Local  52% 65% 13% 70% 

 
6.2 Probation Dependency and Recovery/ Integrated Rehabilitative Services (IRS): The joint  

working arrangements between probation and treatment service teams is beneficial and 
there has been a significant increase in Community Sentence Treatment Requirements:  

Referrals data per order May-23 
Source Probation Service 

Alcohol Treatment Requirements (ATRs) 13 

Drug Rehabilitation Requirement (DRRs) 9 

Rehabilitation Activity Requirements (RARs) 38 

Licence and Post Sentence Supervision (PSS) 29 

Total Referrals 89 

 
 
7 Supplementary Substance Misuse Treatment and Recovery Grant Expenditure 
 
 
7.1 The Supplementary Substance Misuse Treatment and Recovery Grant (SSMTRG) is made 

available by the Department of Health and Social Care (DHSC) to each higher tier local 
authority in England. The funding is confirmed annually, and local authorities are required to 
submit plans to indicate their intended use of the grant.   

 
7.2  In 2023/24 the average uplift in the SSMTRG for Greater Manchester authorities was 30%.  

In 2023/24 Oldham has received £573,288 in funding from SSMTRG which is 14% higher 
than in 2022/23.  This is the second smallest percentage uplift in GM.   

 

Numbers in Treatment June-23 
Source NDTMS 

RAG 
SSMTRG Baseline of 
20% Increase in NIT 
required for 2023/24 

Opiates 701 790 

Non-Opiates/ Non-Opiates & Alcohol 212/ 220 525 

Alcohol Only 460 479 

Total Numbers in Treatment 1593 1794 

Page 48



 

  7 

7.3 Local authorities are solely responsible for all SSMTRG expenditure and reporting, and it is 
a requirement of the grant agreements that the relevant Combatting Drugs Partnership is 
able to review plans. All plans from each GM local authority have been reviewed by officers 
at the Combined Authority.   

 
8. Oldham Drug & Alcohol Needs Assessment 
 
8.1       In the report submitted to the Health and Scrutiny Panel on 7th March was a breakdown of 

Oldham treatment need and prevalence rates for drugs and alcohol. A copy of Oldham Drug 
& Alcohol Needs Assessment 2022 is in appendices. 

 
9 Adult Integrated Substance Misuse Treatment and Recovery Service 
  
9.1 Turning Point Services Ltd commenced delivery of Adult Integrated Substance Misuse 

Treatment and Recovery Service on 1st April 2023, following completion of a successful 
procurement process and mobilisation period. 

 
9.2 Turning Point will present a brief update on implementation, delivery model, and service 

priorities of the first 6 months to the Health Scrutiny committee.  
 
10 Key Issues  
 
10.1 There has been a good implementation & development of services to support residents in 

addiction and for those at risk of offending through substance misuse but there are still key 
challenges. The following areas will be incorporated into the Oldham Drug and Alcohol 
Partnership Delivery Plan: 

 
i. Increasing numbers engaging in treatment by 20% based on 2021/22 baseline is a 

key challenge especially around opiate use. With increased numbers in treatment 
comes the additional pressure of managing capacity and caseload numbers of the 
treatment service. 
 

ii. Reducing unplanned exits; the numbers of clients disengaging from treatment remain 
high and is impacting on overall treatment outcomes, work is ongoing to improve 
engagement rates and maintain numbers in treatment. 
 

iii. Developing the treatment workforce and maintaining capacity is a significant 
challenge with not enough suitably qualified treatment/ recovery workers available. 
This is increasing caseload size and impacting on quality of treatment. 
 

iv. Increasing opportunity for clients in treatment to be supported via rehab placements 
by 2% is being worked towards by the treatment provider and our tire 4 panel 
arrangements are currently being reviewed but will place additional pressure on our 
Tier 4 budgets. 
 

v. Maintaining recovery once exiting from treatment requires an overarching partnership 
response to meet client aspirations to gain employment, accommodation or 
improvement in wider health conditions, such has mental and physical health without 
causing pressure on statutory Mental Health, Adult Social Care or wider health 
services. 
 

vi. Although work outlined above for those released from custody and/ or engaging with 
criminal justice partners is positive, there is more work to be done. It’s recognised 
those clients coming through criminal justice pathways, can be extraordinarily 
complex and resistant to engagement. Nevertheless, engagement has increased in 

Page 49



 

  8 

part due to the focus on developing our criminal justice treatment teams and improved 
partnership joint working arrangements with prisons, police and probation services. 
 

vii. Engagement of change resistant drinkers remains a priority and a focus to increase 
numbers requiring specialist treatment. Work with ROH Alcohol Care Team and 
engagement of rough sleepers and those at risk of losing accommodation remains a 
priority. Supporting families impacted on by a family members drug/ alcohol use, 
especially in relation to women remains an area of ongoing development. 

 
viii. Reducing drug and/or alcohol related harm is still a concern and the ongoing 

challenges presented by Fentanyl’s, Nitazenes and synthetic opioids could have a 
significant impact on the illegal drug market and escalate harm and risk of overdose 
for those still actively in addiction. The Oldham Drug and Alcohol Related Deaths 
Panel delivered in partnership with Liverpool John Moores University is a positive 
development in prevention and embedding learning in the partnership alongside work 
of Safeguarding Adults Board. 
 

ix. The reduction in harm and risk of overdose for those still actively in addiction remains 
a significant area of focus across the partnership with Naloxone being given to high-
risk groups and the sign-up to the staff training offer from Turning Point that will allow 
officers across services to carry or use Naloxone if needed. 

 
It is recognised that these areas are not inclusive and additional elements will be added to 
the plan as required. There is also the long-term horizon scanning of how to maintain the 
Oldham treatment offer if additional government funding desists after 2025/26 period.  

 
11 Appendices  
 
11.1 Oldham Drug & Alcohol Needs Assessment 2022 
 

Oldham Drug & 

Alcohol Needs Assessment - Final final (15-09-2022).pdf
 

 

Page 50


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	6 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	7 Northern Care Alliance - Care Quality Commission - Inspection Report
	8 Pennine Acute Services Transaction and Associated Disaggregation
	9 Drugs and Alcohol Strategy : Adult Integrated Substance Misuse Treatment and Recovery in Oldham

